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AUROVILLE CROWN ROAD FUNDED BY THE GOI AND MISAPPROPRIATION OF FUNDS? 

Satprem Maïni, Director of the Auroville Earth Institute 

16th February 2023 

1. FOREWORD 

In June 2022, under the directive of the secretary of the Auroville Foundation (AVFO), Dr Jayanti Ravi, the Central 
Public Work Department (CPWD) was contracted to build 2 km of the Crown Road (CR), to be paved with concrete 
paver blocks. CPWD did a tender and contracted “SP & Co”, Karuvampalayam, Tirupur who won the bid for 9.7315 
Crores Rs. 

From June to September 2022, a lot of materials were delivered on the part of the Crown Road passing in front of the 
Youth Centre. Among these materials delivered, were reinforced concrete slabs to be used for the cycle paths and 
white dressed granites stones, to be used on either side of the kerbs of the road. 

“SP & Co” started the construction of only a few hundred meters of the CR, stopped the construction of the CR in 
front of the Youth Centre in November 2022 and did not complete anything to date. 

In July 2022, the ATDC appointed by the secretary of the AVFO ordered the destruction of the pavement of the CR 
built by the Auroville Road Service (RS) between 2008 and 2012, with funds from the GoI. To date, the contractor 
has destroyed ~1,300 m of the CR built by the RS, which was in very good condition and did not need to be broken. 

By the end of 2022, the Auroville Town Development Council appointed by the secretary changed their design yet 
again, and requested the CPWD to use precast reinforced concrete (RCC) slabs for the pavement of the Crown Road. 
Thus, the CPWD issued another tender (NIT) on 12th January 2023 for a maximum cost of 13,54,59,248 Rs. 
 

2. MATERIALS PURCHASED WITH GoI FUNDS IN 2008, REUSED FOR THE PARKING OF SOLAR KITCHEN 

A lot of the paver blocks from the old road disappeared or were used for projects not funded by the GoI.  The ATDC 
created a large parking opposite of Solar Kitchen of ~2,730 m2 (~30 x 91 m) with some of these pavers. However, 
this parking is not in the master plan and it does not appear anywhere on the plans of CPWD: see Figure 1 below. 

 
Fig. 1: Plan from CPWD showing the Crown Road and Solar Kitchen, without parking 
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Fig. 2: Parking on the south side of the Solar Kitchen 

 
Fig. 3: Parking opposite Solar Kitchen, being completed 

This parking was neither in the first contract given to “SP & Co”, nor in the new tender published on 12th January 
2023. 

Therefore, these questions arise: 
- As the old road was financed by the Government of India, was it not necessary to obtain government approval 

beforehand for the destruction of the previous portions of the Crown Road? 
- Was it not necessary to obtain government approval beforehand to reuse these paver blocks for this parking, 

which is not on any plan? 
- Which funds were used to build this parking? Were they from the funds given by the GoI for the Crown Road 

which then might be illegal, or was it funded by Auroville, and if yes from which funds? 
 

3. MATERIALS PURCHASED WITH GoI FUNDS FOR THE CR, BUT USED IN MATRIMANDIR 

As the Auroville Town Development Council (ATDC) appointed by the secretary changed their design from concrete 
paver blocks to precast reinforced concrete slabs, and also changed the cross section of the road, the materials 
already delivered for the CR could not be used anymore. 

 
Fig. 4: Precast concrete slab for CR at the Youth Centre, 

delivered in August 2022 

 
Fig. 5: White dressed granite slabs for road side, 

delivered in August 2022 

The Matrimandir used 45 precast concrete slabs and all the white dressed granite slabs for making a circular pathway 
around Matrimandir gardens, as shown below. It seems that this pathway is temporary and was done only for the 
visit of the delegates from G20, who came early February. It is supposed to be removed later. 

 
Fig. 6: Precast slabs and all granite slabs used at Matrimandir 

 
Fig. 7: 45 precast slabs and all white granite slabs used 

However, this prompts the following questions: 

- Was there any government approval first which authorised using materials funded by the Government of India 
(GoI) to build the Crown Road for a non-governmental project, even temporary? 

- Which funds were used to create this pathway? Were they from the Matrimandir or from funds given by the GoI? 


